CITY OF NORTH SALT LAKE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING-WORK SESSION
JANUARY 19, 2021

FINAL
Mayor Arave called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Mayor Len Arave
Council Member Lisa Watts Baskin
Council Member Natalie Gordon
Council Member Brian Horrocks
Council Member Ryan Mumford joined the meeting at 6:09 p.m.
Council Member Stan Porter

STAFF PRESENT: Ken Leetham, City Manager; Paul Ottoson, City Engineer; Janice Larsen,
Finance Director; Craig Black, Police Chietf; David Church, City Attorney; Tyler Abegglen, Golf
Course General Manager; Sherrie Pace, Community Development Director; Linda Horrocks,
City Recorder; Andrea Bradford, Minutes Secretary.

OTHERS PRESENT: Dee Lalliss, resident.

Mayor Arave stated “in keeping with recommendations of Federal, State, and Local authorities
to limit public gatherings 1n order to control the continuing spread of COVID-19, and 1n
accordance with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act, specifically Utah Code 52-4-207(4),
the City of North Salt Lake City Council and meeting presenters will participate electronically
via phone or video conference.”

1. DEPARTMENT REPORT: CITY MANAGER REPORT ON CERTAIN FY22
BUDGET ITEMS

Ken Leetham reported that his report would be an overview of items statf was working on but
would not cover everything. He spoke on the water and storm water master plan project updates
with the project goals of water modeling including sources, storage and distribution, analysis of
future water needs, storm drain deficiencies, revised CIP, new technical specifications, water
conservation strategy, rate studies for water and storm drain utility fees, and growth areas.

Mr. Leetham commented that the City held a workshop with several contractors to discuss the
RFP for the proposed project. Responses are expected by January 28", and he said the selection
process could take some time and would include presentations to the City Council. The estimated
cost for the project would be $200,000 to $350,000, but he added that it was a complicated
process and would be difficult to determine an exact amount at this time. The funding source for
this project would be from the Water and Storm Water Capital Project Funds.



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting

January 19, 2021
Page 2

Ken Leetham reported on the Parks and Recreation Master Plan project, which included the
following goals: plan Hatch Park expansion, plan Tunnel Springs expansion, plan Eaglepointe
Landslide project, commitment to an annual maintenance program, beautification initiatives
including tree planting, and potential trail expansions. Staff was preparing an RFP to hire a
consultant for this project with funding to come from impact fees. The project timeline included
selection of a consultant by May 1% with fees ranging from $20,000 to $40,000. He also
suggested that staft could be used for this project instead of hiring a consultant.

Council Member Mumford arrived at 6:09 p.m.
Council Member Horrocks commented that David Frandsen had great ideas and the City had

already been discussing this project for several years. He suggested allowing David Frandsen and
staff to share 1deas and to get going on this project.

Mayor Arave asked 1f statt could perform the park impact fee analysis. Ken Leetham replied that
1t would be a good 1dea for a third party expert in that field to prepare the analysis.

Ken Leetham spoke on the Hatch Park expansion and said the steering committee would be
meeting the following week. He said shortly after that the City Council would need to make
some decisions regarding funding. The project goals included acquiring remaining properties on
150 North, a comprehensive planning process with a steering committee, obtaining valuable
public input, adopting a high quality and feasible plan, and identifying funding sources for
construction.

Mr. Leetham said the steering committee included the Parks Trails Arts and Recreation Advisory
Board, which would include Council Member Mumford, as well as members of City staff. The

first meeting would be held January 25%.
Mayor Arave asked for an invitation to this meeting with the steering commiuttee.

Ken Leetham then reported on the Foxboro Wetlands Park with the project goals of authorizing
the consultant, BloWest to complete the application to obtain the US Army Corps of Engineers
permit, utilizing the existing grant in 2021, identifying funding, completing plans for
construction, and beginning work on the project. He said the City had received a $150,000 grant,
which had to be used this year. Mr. Leetham said that the total project cost would be $3.2
million, and construction could begin this year 1f additional funding was i1dentified. He suggested
that the City Council review the cost estimates for this project in a work session and set up a
phasing plan as the original construction costs had increased significantly.

Ken Leetham reported on Tunnel Springs Park with the project goals to identity the end use of
excess property, options for park expansion, potential for a cemetery, and disposal of property.
He said that direction was needed from the City Council related to the project schedule and cost.



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting

January 19, 2021
Page 3

This project was delayed because the City did not know how much soil would remain on the
property after the completion of the landslide repair.

Mr. Leetham then spoke on the 1100 North bridge feasibility study and construction. He said the
City wanted to perform this study to obtain “shovel ready” status, obtain public input, identify
right-of-way needs, and identify the cost of construction. Staff was working on a RFP with the
help of Horrocks Engineering and a projected cost for the project of $2 million. The City was
awarded a grant of $1 million from Davis County with the remaining $1 million to come from
City Roadway Impact Fees.

Mayor Arave suggested that the City should apply for additional grant funding if the 1100 North
bridge project extended into next year. He asked about participation from Woods Cross. Ken
Leetham replied that Woods Cross was not interested in participating at this time.

Mayor Arave asked for an update on the marketplace across from City Hall. Sherrie Pace replied
that she would send an email to the City Council with an update.

Ken Leetham reported on the Eaglewood Golf Course renovation. The project goals included
renovation of the clubhouse exterior and grounds, renovation of the indoor reception center,
1identifying costs of construction, and identifying funding sources for construction. He said JZW
Architects were completing a reception center concept plan, the plans would be reviewed with a
recommendation to be made by the Golf Course Oversight Committee, and an analysis of new
debt related to the FY22 budget. The estimated cost for this project would be $1.8 million to $2.2
million. Mr. Leetham said General Manager Tyler Abegglen was changing operations and the
course had experienced far less loss with the new manager.

Ken Leetham reviewed funding sources for these projects including the Hatch Park expansion
with the possibility for funding through CDA funds, impact fees, or new debt. Funding for other
projects would include CDA funds or grants for the Foxboro Wetlands Park, impact fees or RAP
tax for Tunnel Springs Park, CDA, Rap Tax or grants for Citywide beautification, impact fees or
RAP Tax for trail expansions, impact fees and grants for the 1100 North bridge study, and new
debt or user fees for the Eaglewood Golf Course project. He explained that the US-89 CDA was
triggered 1n 2019 and there were some obligations to Brighton Homes, but that there would be
approximately $3.4 million leftover and available through that CDA as well as $7.75 million
available through the Redwood Road CDA after obligations to Lee’s Marketplace. As these
funds from the CDAs could be used for Hatch Park and Foxboro Wetlands Park staft will put
together a proposed plan for the use of these funds with the Town Center and Redwood Road
areas. The City Council could then adopt a spending plan during the FY 2022 budget review.

Mayor Arave commented that this was a large amount of money and asked that staft review a
variety of options, such as the purchase of land, for the use of these funds. Ken Leetham replied
that the plans for the CDA funds would be part of the upcoming budget deliberations.



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting

January 19, 2021
Page 4

Ken Leetham said this was not a complete list of projects as there were capital improvement
plans, road repairs, water projects, etc. and staff would share five-year plans with the City
Council throughout the budget process. He commented that there had been input from some of
the Council that the format of the budget retreat should be several hours of review on a Saturday
instead of multiple presentations made during City Council meetings on Tuesday nights.

2. APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
The City Council minutes of January 5, 2021 were reviewed and approved.
Council Member Horrocks moved to approve the City Council minutes of January 5, 2021

with one correction. Council Member Mumford seconded the motion. The motion was
approved by Council Members Baskin, Gordon, Horrocks, Mumford and Porter.

3. ACTION ITEMS
The action 1tems list was reviewed. Completed items were removed from the list.

Council Member Mumtord asked about the Recreation District meeting, which was held on the
January 13", and the proposed new facility.

4. MAYOR’ REPORT

Mayor Arave replied to Council Member Mumford’s question about the Recreation District
meeting and said 1t was well attended. There was a review of two plans including the expansion
of the existing facility with a 50-meter pool and modernization of the interior as well as a plan
for a new facility. He said residents were supportive of the idea, which would result in a tax

increase of $40 or $50 a year for both facilities.

Council Member Porter asked about the email he had sent recommending property on 1100
North for the proposed Recreation District facility. Mayor Arave replied that the Rec District
was reviewing sites but he felt 1t would be better 1f another location was chosen for the new
facility so the City would not lose 1ts tax base. He said there was a better location in Woods

Cross but statf was working with the District on possible locations.

5. COUNCIL REPORTS

Council Member Baskin commented on the incident at the United States Capitol and said she
was committed to doing better every day to make peace and clarity.

Council Member Mumford reported that the steering committee meeting for the Hatch Park
redesign would be held Monday January 25". He said that the redesign would affect the City for



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting
January 19, 2021

Page 5

100 years and beyond by setting the tone for the City Center. Council Member Mumford also
said that the Mayor’s comments about the CDA funds were right on and whatever the City chose
to do with those funds would also impact the City for decades. He said that the Council had a big
obligation to get things right during this budget session.

Council Member Mumford reported on recent odor events from the Wasatch Resource Recovery
Plant and said that there had been issues for the last two weeks. He said he sent an email to Dal
Wayment and noticed that there had been a social media announcement that the fence line
sprayers would be 1nstalled soon which should help with the odors. He said the smell events
were happening at times throughout the day and were not consistent. Mayor Arave commented
that the South Davis Sewer District Board would meet on Thursday so he would discuss the issue
with Dal Wayment at that time.

Council Member Porter reported on a recent Jordan River Commission meeting and said that
funding would be available to secure the City’s portion of the river. Chief Black commented that

1t was his understanding that 1f money became available the City was on the list to receive
funding.

6. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT
David Church had nothing to report.

7. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Ken Leetham reported on the upcoming legislative session and asked if the City Council would
like the legislators to come to a meeting. Mayor Arave replied that there were things to discuss
such as the policing bills and asked that staft invite them.

Chief Black commented that the law enforcement legislative committee was reviewing potential
bills including one that would affect the justice court. He said the proposed bill would restrict a
judge from being able to suspend a driver license for traffic violations, which would result with
the only recourse then being warrants and jail time.

Ken Leetham mentioned two efforts including a bill from Representative Ward regarding
accessory dwelling units (ADU) which would make them more permissible. He said he was part
of several housing committees, including the Utah League of Cities and Towns, and had
expressed that the City was supportive of providing difterent housing types. Mr. Leetham said
that the ADU bill would not allow the City to regulate or require off-street parking associated
with those ADUSs, which was an 1ssue. He also said that there were concerns that cities were not
being fair in regards to their fees, which resulted in local government being seen as a barrier for
housing affordability. He indicated that he had assisted the League by collecting data through the



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting
January 19, 2021

Page 6

Utah City Management Association (UCMA) about building and permitting fees. He does not
believe that such fees area a barrier to housing affordability.

Council Member Horrocks said he heard a rumor that the legislature was looking at removing
city permitting. He said that the 1dea was 1f an architect approved the plans per local building
codes then 1t would bypass the City and the permitting process. Ken Leetham replied that it was
an 1dea that was being discussed. He said if there were communities that did not comply with
State law then the League of Cities and Towns should be working with them to come into
compliance or all cities would be punished for that behavior. Mr. Leetham said the private sector
could potentially have a role in this, and if it was done properly then it may not be a problem.

8. ADJOURN

Mayor Arave adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. to begin the regular session.



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting

January 19, 2021
Page 7

CITY OF NORTH SALT LAKE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING-REGULAR SESSION
JANUARY 19, 2021

FINAL

Mayor Arave called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.

PRESENT: Mayor Len Arave

Council Member Lisa Watts Baskin
Council Member Natalie Gordon
Council Member Brian Horrocks
Council Member Ryan Mumford
Council Member Stan Porter

STAFF PRESENT: Ken Leetham, City Manager; Paul Ottoson, City Engineer; Janice Larsen,
Finance Director; Craig Black, Police Chief; David Church, City Attorney; Tyler Abegglen, Golf
Course General Manager; Sherrie Pace, Community Development Director; Linda Horrocks,
City Recorder; Andrea Bradford, Minutes Secretary.

OTHERS PRESENT: Dee Lalliss, Ron Jorgensen, Katherine Maus, Alisa Van Langeveld,
residents.

1. CITIZEN COMMENT

There were no citizen comments.

2. CITY COUNCIL RATIFICATION OF MAYOR’S PLANNING COMMISSION
APPOINTMENTS

Mayor Arave reported that there were many great applicants for the current Planning
Commiuission positions and introduced Katherine Maus and Ron Jorgensen as his selections for
the Commission. He first introduced Katherine and said she was the director of public
engagement and conservation at Utah Open Lands and had just completed a master’s degree.

Katherine Maus commented that she had lived 1n the City for two years. She said her master’s
degree was 1n environmental chemistry and biology. Ms. Maus said she worked for Utah Open
Lands and hoped to bring a lens of conservation to the Planning Commission.

Mayor Arave then introduced Ron Jorgenson, a retired vice president of western pipeline for
Dominion Energy and the Chair for the Utah Food Bank.



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting
January 19, 2021

Page 8

Ron Jorgensen said he was a retired business executive and wanted to stay involved in the

community. He commented that he had lived in the City for 25 years and was looking forward to
the opportunity to serve.

Mayor Arave commented that the third new commissioner would be Ted Knowlton who would
be replacing the seat Kent Kirkham had been filling.

Council Member Porter asked what part of the City the new commissioners lived in. Mayor
Arave replied that Katherine lived in Foxboro and Ron lived near the golf course.

Council Member Gordon moved to approve Mayor Arave’s appointments of Ron

Jorgensen and Katherine Maus as members of the City of North Salt Lake Planning
Commission.

Mayor Arave asked that the motion include approval of Ted Knowlton as well.

Council Member Gordon amended her motion to include the appointment of Ted
Knowlton. Council Member Baskin seconded the motion. The motion was approved by
Council Members Baskin, Gordon, Horrocks, Mumford and Porter.

3. PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 2021-03R: A
RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 CITY OF NORTH SALT
LAKE GENERAL FUND, DEBT SERVICE FUND, CAPITAL FUND, ROAD
CAPITAL FUND, WATER FUND, IRRIGATION FUND, STORM WATER FUND,
SOLID WASTE FUND, GOLF FUND AND FLEET FUND BUDGETS

Janice Larsen reported on the adjustments summarized in the memo found 1n the packet, which
included revenues 1n the General Fund, the budget increase for sales tax revenues in the amount
of $1,398,600, franchise tax in the amount of $54,500, CARES Act federal grant revenues in the
amount of $549,450, road tax revenues in the amount of $215,500, and development related
revenues in the amount of $112,000. The one revenue area experiencing a significant decrease
related to the Coronavirus pandemic was 1n the Court, which was due to a decision at the State
level to suspend in-person court appearances. The court revenues were expected to be $170,000
lower than the current budget. In expenditures, statff recommended moving $215,000 to the Fleet
Fund to purchase four police department vehicles.

Ms. Larsen said the other significant adjustment would be to wages and benetits, excluding
sworn police officers, for a 2% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) to the wages schedules, the
reinstatement of the annual merit increase, and the reinstatement of the medical 1n lieu
contributions for qualifying employees. Statf recommends the adjustments be made
retroactively to the beginning the fiscal year. The recommendation was also made for an
additional budget item to reinstate a full-time planner position. A part-time position already



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting

January 19, 2021
Page 9

existed and statt proposed moving the part-time employee to a full-time position and possibly
hiring a new employee to fill the current part-time position. The budget increase to fund these
two changes to the end of the current Fiscal Year would be $19,000.

Janice Larsen said the most significant expenditure, or transfer, to the Capital Fund from the
General Fund of $1.3 million included the increase in the sales tax, CARES Act revenue, and
Road Tax money for projects. She said the CARES Act revenue could be used for the purchase
of equipment and supplies for costs related to the Coronavirus. The City expected to spend
approximately $85,000 1n the current fiscal year. No funds were currently budgeted for these
expenditures, which could be offset by the CARES Act revenue.

Statt also recommended additional budget for the completion of road and water capital projects
related to the third phase of the Eaglewood Loop and Rockwood. The additional cost of these
projects was estimated to be $484,000 in the Road Fund and $454,000 in the Water Fund.

Janice Larsen explained that the increase in revenue for the current FY results in unrestricted
funds being available to transfer to other funds for much needed infrastructure expenditures in
the current and future years. The proposed transfers-out are all from the General Fund to other
funds 1n the following amounts: Capital Fund (Fund Balance-Future Projects) $1,300,000, Road
Fund (Road Projects) $1,015,500, Fleet Fund (Police Vehicles) $ 215,000.

At 7:18 p.m. Mayor Arave opened the public hearing. There were no public comments and
Mayor Arave asked for a motion. At 7:19 p.m. Council Member Horrocks moved to close
the public hearing. Council Member Gordon seconded the motion. The motion was
approved by Council Members Baskin, Gordon, Horrocks, Mumford and Porter.

Council Member Porter moved that the City Council approve Resolution 2021-03R
proposing a mid-year budget adjustment. Council Member Horrocks seconded the motion.
The motion was approved by Council Members Gordon, Horrocks, Mumford and Porter.
Council Member Baskin voted in opposition to the motion.

Council Member Baskin commented that she felt Council Member Horrocks should recuse
himself on this item and also that she was not sure the City was out of the woods with the
pandemic. She felt the City should err on the side of caution.

4. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED PURCHASE OF FOUR POLICE PATROL CARS
IN AN AMOUNT UP TO $211,600

Chief Black reported and said the replacement vehicles had not yet been named as he was unsure
how long it would take to obtain the vehicles. He said at least four vehicles would be brought to
the City Council for surplus and disposal including two 2013 vehicles and all four vehicles had

over 100,000 of police service.



City of North Salt Lake
City Council Meeting
January 19, 2021

Page 10

Mayor Arave asked 1f all four vehicles would be Ford Explorer SUVs. Chief Black replied
affirmatively and said that Ford had a hybrid model, which would help with the wear and tear.

Council Member Porter moved that the City Council approve the purchase and equipping
of four (4) 2021 Ford AWD Police Explorers at the cost of up to $211,600. Council Member

Mumford seconded the motion. The motion was approved by Council Members Baskin,
Gordon, Horrocks, Mumford and Porter.

5. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 2021-02R: A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A
CITY OF NORTH SALT LAKE REPRESENTATIVE AS A MEMBER OF THE
SOUTH DAVIS RECREATION DISTRICT ADMINISTRATIVE CONTROL BOARD

Mayor Arave commented that he had served on this board for several years and would be the
chair this year. He asked that the Council reappoint him to the position.

Council Member Horrocks moved that Mayor Arave be reappointed to the South Davis
Recreation District Administrative Control Board. Council Member Gordon seconded the
motion. The motion was approved by Council Members Baskin, Gordon, Horrocks,
Mumford and Porter.

6. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT CONT.

Ken Leetham reported on the countywide paramedic service issue and said that the city managers
for Farmington and Clearfield and North Salt Lake were working with the County Commission
on this project. He said there was a discussion on the countywide tax ending this year and the
transition of paramedics for sheriff deputies to emergency response paramedic units. There
would be 11 paramedic units 1n the county at the end of 2022. The advantages of this system
would be that the property tax inequity would be resolved and paramedic services would be
greatly increased.

7. ADJOURN

Mayor Arave adjourned the meeting at 7:29 p.m.

The foregoing was approved by the City Council of the City of North Salt Lake on Tuesday
February 2, 2021 by unanimous vote of all members present.

Linda Horrocks, City Recorder



